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The Slavonian Hall is a sturdy, two-storied frame structure designed at the turn of the
century to serve as a meeting house and social hall for Tacoma's newly-arrived Slavonian
community. The building is situated on a bluff which rises to the south and west, high
above Commencement Bay. Although the hall is located in the residential neighborhood of
01d Town, several adjoining properties include such modern intrusions as a power station,
a commercial structure of concrete blocks, and a recent low-rise apartment building.

Slavonian Hall rests on a poured concrete foundation. Its original clapboard siding has
been covered over with composition shingles. A 1910 photograph of the hall indicates that
its ground floor originally included three commercial shop spaces, and its 30th Street
elevation featured glazed store fronts with corresponding recessed entrances. On the
exterior, the shop fronts have since been obscured with an anonymous coating of aggregate-
stucco, leaving only the central entryway intact. The roof of the hall is a shallow gable,
.disguised on the 30th Street facade by a stepped, ornamented false front, and on the east
and west elevations by a simple parapet approximately one foot in height.

Modest ornamental detailing adds interest to the 30th Street elevation at second-story level
One-over-one light, double-hung sash are grouped in a unit of three, flanked by units of
two. These groupings are tied together by dentilled wooden cornices and, in the case of the
central unit, by a flattened pediment. Above the windows, "“SLAVONIAN HALL" in bold wooden
lettering is punctuated by a wooden eagle perched within a metallic ring. Other details of
note include a full entablature of wood with a projecting moulded cornice and dentil course,
turned wooden finials at the outermost corners of the parapet, and a pair of wooden flag-
poles which rise high above the parapet's central section. The 1910 photograph indicates
that additional elements of decoration such as brackets and pendants, have been removed.

Fenestration to the sides and rear of the hall consists chiefly of double units of one-over-
one light sash, and of single, four-Tight sash. Window surrounds are of the simple plank
variety.

Although the interior of the Slavonian Hall has been visually altered, a number of recog-
nizably original elements have been retained. The ground-floor plan is divided longitu-
dinally by a central hall and staircase. An adjoining room to the east once served as a
theatre. Massive wooden pilasters of the proscenium arch remain in place, but the stage
itself has been dismantled. The theatre now functions as a dining hall and semi-partitioned
kitchen. A ground-floor room to the west of the central hall serves as additional meeting
and rental space. Original rear partitions of the three ground-floor shops have been
removed, and the shop fronts themselves have been encased on the interior with stock
panelling. Similarly, original wall surfaces and ceilings are not presently visable, as
they have been obscured with a variety of modern facings.

The second-story interior encompasses a spacious dance hall, club room, cloak room, and
restrooms. The staircase and upper balustrade are still intact. Dark-stained tongue-in-

\ groove wainscothing Tines the second-floor circulation areas. The ceiling of the dance hall
is distinguished by false beams arranged in a coffered pattern on a plastered surface.
Original wooden benches, which once surrounded the dance floor for the comfort of chaperonin
matrons, remain within the building. A1l flooring on the interior of the hall appears to be
original.
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Slavonian Hall, the meeting house and social hall of Tacoma's Slavonian-American Benevolent
Society, was constructed in the opening years of the 20th Century. Slavonians newly-
immigrated to the city of Tacoma settled in the neighborhood of 01d Town, because of its
proximity to the water and potential for fishing. The Benevolent Society, and others
similar to it, were organized to meet the social and financial needs of new citizens in an
alien land. Although financial benefits have been eliminated from the society's present-
day program, the organization still provides social activity for the Slavonian community.
Today, while the ethnic identity of the Tacoma Slavonians remains well-defined, fishing still
serves as their dominant industry, and the Slavonian-American Benevolent Society constitutes
one of the oldest continuing ethnic organizations in Tacoma. Slavonian Hall itself plays

a significant role in maintaining many aspects of this community's cultural heritage.

The immigration to the United States of the Tacoma Slavonian community began towards the
end of the 19th Century, when the present-day country of Yugoslavia was still part of the
Austria-Hungary Empire. Most who came prior to 1919 had lived in the.western or southern
part of present-day Yugoslavia, and the ethnic diversity of the various provinces of origin
necessitated the invention of a word to describe these peoples when they immigrated and
settled together in the United States. The names of some of the provinces were Slavonija,
Slavenija, Hrvatska (Croatia) and Dalmacija. The word Dalmacija was not appropriate for it
also referred to Greeks and Serbians, much as Slav, or Slavic, also included Russians and
all the other Slavic peoples in Eastern Europe. Therefore a new name, Slavonian, was
created to define the group as a whole. Ethnologically, "Slavonian" has no meaning.

The political situation in Austria-Hungary, and the emerging struggle for.a national identity
based on race, affected the organization of the benevolent societies in Tacoma. Prior to
World War I, an immigrant was identified as Austrian or Slavonian. The Austrian Benevolent
Society was formed in the late 1880's, and a split in this society, in March of 1900,
resulted in the organization of the Slavonian-American Benevolent Society. The latter was
incorporated April 10, 1901 and eventually established branches in Gig Harbor and
Bellingham, Washington. The distinction between those identified as Austrians and those
identified as Slavonians continued until World War I marked the end of the Austrian Empire.
The Tacoma community had a unique way of acknowledging allegiance with, the Empire or with
national-ethnic independence. If a young immigrant was sent to "Sera Kate's" boarding
house, he was Slavonian. If, on the other hand, he was sent to "Sera -Perina's" Boarding
house, he was Austrian. '

The Slavonian Hall in 01d Town, Tacoma, Washington was built in 1901-1902 through the
financial assistance of Andrew Beritich, with construction labor donated by the membership.
The activities of the Society were social and financial. Health benefits and dependency
assistance were provided for all members in need. Prior to World War I, the Slavonian-
American Benevolent Society was one of the most active of many such organizations in the
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city. Its own band and drill team competed with those of other benevolent societies in
the city. On the first floor of the hall was a theater in which Slavonic language plays
were performed. Later, the theater facility was rented to the Tacoma Little Theater. The
stage, however, was dismantled in the 1940's.

Within the Society, it was customary to care for the individual lodge member until death.
When an individual died, all members were expected to attend the funeral. An all night
wake preceded the funeral, and during funeral ceremonies the membership, led by the band,
marched in front of the horse-drawn hearse. This custom continued until 1915.

The Three Kings Dance (Tri Kralja Bal), held in January was (and still is) the greatest
social occasion for the lodge. Slav families came from Gig Harbor, Seattle, Bellingham,
Everett and Portland to participate in the festivities. While the men would congragate

in the Club Room to discuss the previous fishing season, the women would form the "Censor
Board." Sitting on the benches which Tined the walls of the dance floor, they would keep

an eye on who danced with whom, and how many times. In this way budding romances were
predicted. The Three Kings Dance demonstrated the importance of music to the lodge. Dancing
especially to the accordion, and spontaneous singing, are an integral part of the Slavonian
culture.

In 1912, ladies of the lodge formed their own club, the Hrvatsko Amerikansko Dobrotvorno
Drustvo. In 1917, the group was incorporated and renamed the Ladies Croatian American
Benefit Society. Its purpose was the assistance of widows and persons dependent upon de-
ceased members. In 1962 the men and women's clubs were merged.

The Slav-American Juniors were formed in 1936, with Anthony Vlahovich instrumental in the
organization. This social and fun club lasted until World War II, when all lodge activities
were 1imited to essentials. In the late 1940's members of the lodge were once again con- .
tacted for the purpose of resuming activities curtailed by the war. At this time,

" alterations to the building were begun with the intention of creating a memorial to past
members and their contributions to the Slavonian community.



